HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL

A meeting of the Health Scrutiny Panel was held on 19 December 2017.

- PRESENT: Councillors E Dryden (Chair),S Biswas, A Hellaoui, J McGee, L McGloin and M Walters
- ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Gary MacDonald – Deputy Director of Finance – South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust Amanda Hume – Chief Officer – South Tees CCG Simon Gregory – Director of Finance – South Tees CCG Dr Ali Tahmassebi – Governing Body GP, South Tees CCG, Alex Sinclair – Director of Programmes and Care, South Tees CCG Judith Brown – Parent / Carer - Bankfield Court Simon Wall – Team Manager, Adult Social Care Caroline Breheny – Democratic Services Officer

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Councillor R Brady, Councillor C Hobson.

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest.

17/26 MINUTES - HEALTH SCRUTINY PANEL - 28 NOVEMBER 2017

The minutes of the Health Scrutiny Panel meeting held on 28 November were approved as a correct record.

17/27 DDTHRW STP - FURTHER EVIDENCE

The Deputy Director of Finance at South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and Chief Officer and Director of Finance at South Tees CCG were in attendance to provide a presentation on the financial implications of the DDTHRW STP for acute service delivery in Middlesbrough. The Chair made reference to a meeting of the DDTHRW STP Joint OSC on 8 November at which the STP Lead Officer had acknowledged that the NHS was 'broken and underfunded'. The DDTHRW STP plan effectively no longer existed. The Deputy Director of Finance at South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust advised that the world had moved on significantly over the last 2 years and it was not about ignoring what had previously been produced but rather recognising that the NHS was facing a different landscape, with new challenges, and there was probably a need for a refreshed plan. As alluded to at the Joint OSC there were also an opportunity in certain areas to undertake work across Cumbria and the North East that would benefit from additional focus. It was needed on a South Tees basis was already being undertaken.

The Chief Officer at the CCG advised that the STP had been a bit of arbitrary process that had been agreed nationally and the reason the DDTHRW STP footprint was determined had been on the back of the Better Health Programme (BHP) work. However, there was increasing recognition that for specialised services the patient flow went beyond the DDTHRW STP. For acute services there was also a need to think about improved patient flow to the North and South of the region and plans needed to be made on a bigger footprint. There was also a greater focus on services being delivered outside of the hospital environment, for example, in GP surgeries and much more focussed around localities. There was a need to build on the DDTHRW STP and much of the South Tees Integration work had been taking place before and it needed to continue. It was about the provision of the right services on the right geographic footprint.

In terms of the DDTHRW STP work continued, however, it was not at a point where a public consultation exercise could be undertaken. At present it was a case of a number of options being considered and debated. This process was ongoing and they were beginning to layer on

additional complexities. Some of which needed to considered in the broader context of the North East. The question was posed in light of the above, as to which services were fragile / vulnerable. It was acknowledged that there were particular issues in respect of breast services, workforce challenges, specialised services, interventionist radiology, maternity and paediatric provision.

In terms of the financial implications of the STP it was advised that the funding would still come to the Trust unless there were changes nationally in the legislation. NHS England currently had a tariff based system in place but collaborate effort were being made to ensure that all organisations worked together in a way to make best use of the South Tees pound. Nationally there was also a strong drive on working more collaboratively. Demand for health services across South Tees was significant and that high level of demand needed to be provided for in this locality. Demand was driving the finances and ideally the best outcome would be to reduce that demand. A delicate balance between the delivery of elective, non-elective and specialised services needed to be maintained.

Reference was made to JCUH and the need for it to retain a number of services, including maternity, oncology and neurology in order to maintain its trauma status. It was explained that although the unit price for elective surgery such as hips, knees and cataracts is lower, the stay is lower and therefore it does not necessarily follow that a change on through put is detrimental. It is about working out what you should be dealing with and it was advised that it is a delicate balance in terms of resource planning.

It was again emphasised that there were significant financial challenges and the STP had been based on 2016/17 plan. However, the outturn had been different to the plan and therefore the underlying position had changed. It was confirmed that the STP lead officer had been seconded to the post 4 days per week and it was important to have a local system leader leading that change. The rest of the system's role was to hold him to account.

The Chair queried the issues of interest that the panel should be focussing on. The Deputy Director of Finance at the Trust advised that since the publication of the STP the challenge had become greater because of the outturn verses the budget. Business cases would be prepared and an assessment needed to be made around how to obtain that visibility. It was emphasised that the STP was not the business case and that work still needed to be produced.

The point was made that with the Trust in financial measures there were significant challenges in the system and it was about looking at how we all worked together to address them. We had to live within our means and use our resources in the most effective way. It was acknowledged that the various organisations were all separate statutory bodies. However, there were some really strong relationships in place, which afforded us a fighting chance to meet these challenges.

Reference was made to the £58m, for example, spent on medication and it was emphasised that there was still significant waste in our prescribing of medicines.

The point was made that in some respects it was a bit too early to answer the questions the scrutiny panel wanted answering. It was advised that it would be around spring time before a more meaningful debate could be held at a South Tees level around which services were particularly vulnerable and fragile.

Accountable Care Organisations (ACO's)

The Chief Officer at South Tees CCG advised that there were so many different definitions of ACS's but from a national perspective 8 systems had been identified as ACO's. All had been determined nationally and it was not possible to compare one with another. There was an array of different ACO's and in some instances they involved pooled budgets. From an NHS perspective there was no blueprint about how any it would be determined. It was very much driven by a desire to explore new models of care and there would not be a prescribed model. It was up to each local system to determine the best model for them.

At the moment the question locally was whether there was sufficient interest within Cumbria and the North East, to explore working in an inner system. Northumberland had a different care model in place and so there was a further question around whether we could share what was happening in Northumberland, the North East and Cumbria. It was emphasised that each ACO was different, some had agreed pooled budgets across health and social care but there was no single response. The Chief Officer at South Tees CCG advised that it would be possible to share some of the ACO approaches adopted with the panel and explain what the benefits of the different systems maybe. It was emphasised that the Manchester Model was not an ACO and each part of the country was developing its own model.

In terms of the current position in relation to the STP the view was expressed that the whole plan needed to be refreshed in line with the 5 year Forward View. The refresh would be undertaken once some of the work around the acute sector / bigger picture had been completed. The view was expressed that it could be beneficial for the panel to invite some of the people who had been working on the Northumberland ACS model to attend a future meeting of the panel. With a view to providing an overview of the work that undertaken in respect of the ACS in their region.

The Chair expressed the view that it felt some of the changes taking place in the various health sectors was a part of the STP, for example, the section on learning disabilities including the proposed co-production of new service models, as well as the agreed bed closures. The Chief Officer at STCCG advised that many of the principles included in the STP were in line with the 5 year view and particularly the need to tackle the issue of sustainability in the acute sector. The concern was raised by the panel, however, that as time goes on certain areas were becoming more stretched and thereby the service redesign would occur by default rather than design. It was also emphasised that the issues highlighted in the STP were still the main areas that needed to be addressed. The STP was an aggregation of all of the measures which needed to be happening across our footprint. The point was made that all of these planning processes had been in place since the inception of the CCG.

The Chair thanked the attendees for their attendance and made the point that elected Members were concerned about what would be happening in 5 years'/ 10 years' time regarding acute service provision.

AGREED as follows:-

1. That an invitation be extended to those working on the Northumberland ACO to attend a meeting of the panel to provide Members with an overview of challenges and opportunities ACO's presented.

2. That lobbying be undertaken to ensure that local CCGs be given the ability to make proper planning irrespective of whether a more traditional model was adopted.

17/28 THE CLOSURE OF THE RESOLUTION MEDICAL CENTRE NORTH ORMESBY

The Director of Programmes and Care at South Tees CCG and the Governing Body GP at South Tees CCG were in attendance at the meeting to provide information in respect of the recent decision for Resolution Health Centre to be closed on 31 March 2018. It was explained that Resolution Health Centre was a GP practice in Middlesbrough which delivered essential, additional and enhanced services via an Alternative Provider Medical Services (APMS) Contract to a registered 5642 patients. The CCG and NHS England had previously agreed a contract extension with South Tees Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, the current provider. The contract had been due to end on 31st March 2016, however following a failed procurement in October 2016, the contract was extended with the current provider for a further 12 months.

On 25 April 2017 the CCG Primary Care Committee agreed to commence re-procurement of Resolution Health Centre. The tender document for the contract was developed and published on 9 October 2017 with the procurement deadline set to 8 November 2017. No bids were received for this contract resulting in a failed procurement. This was a second failed procurement for Resolution Health Centre therefore on 21 November 2017 the CCG Primary Care Committee made the decision to close the practice and disperse the list.

During discussion the following points were raised:-

- The CCG were supporting patients with the closure of Resolution Health Centre. Patients received a letter week commencing 4 December 2017 advising that due to the failed procurement the CCG had made the difficult decision to close the practice. Patients had been provided with a list of practices that were currently registering new patients.
- The CCG and NHS England monitored re-registering and any patient that had not re-registered 3 months after the closure would be sent a reminder letter.
- The CCG had invested GP Five Year Forward View money as well as local CCG investment into General Practice. The total investment to General Practice in South Tees, over and above the standard contract had been circa £2 million in 2016/17.
- The CCG had invested in "Care Navigation" with all 40 GP practices across South Tees. Care Navigation offered the patient choice to access the most appropriate service first. For example when a patient presented with symptoms that met the access criteria for other services such as a counsellor, physiotherapist, pharmacist, public health services or opticians, the care navigator could confidently offer those choices and enable the patient to go straight to the service which best met their health and wellbeing needs (right place first time).

AGREED that the work undertaken by South Tees CCG in response to NHS England's General Practice 5 year Forward View (GPFV) be shared with the panel.

17/29 RESPITE AND SHORT BREAK OPPORTUNITIES CONSULTATION

The Chair made reference to the work undertaken by the Respite Opportunities and Short Breaks Joint Health Scrutiny Committee in respect of South Tees and HaST CCGs' current consultation on the future of respite provision for people with learning disabilities, complex needs and autism.

It was advised that a meeting of the Joint OSC had been held on 14 December 2017 in Stockton. At which the CCG's had provided an update on the independent consultation feedback report, the number of clients per local authority receiving respite and short breaks at Aysgarth and Bankfields and case studies for people with complex needs who were in receipt of bed based respite provision in the community. Following receipt of the evidence put forward the Joint OSC concluded that it was not supportive of either of the options and proposed that the CCG's should retain the current level of service provision at Bankfields and Aysgarth. A formal response needed to be submitted to the CCG's in advance of the 11 January 2018. Middlesbrough Health's Scrutiny had the opportunity to contribute its views to that response and determine whether it wished to endorse the Joint OSC's recommendation.

At the request of the Chair a parent representative from Bankfields was also in attendance at the meeting to provide further information on the views of parents / family carers prior to the submission of the panel's and Joint OSC's formal response.

During discussion the following points were raised:-

- The CCG were supporting patients with the closure of Resolution Health Centre. Patients received a letter week commencing 4 December 2017 advising that due to the failed procurement the CCG had made the difficult decision to close the practice. Patients had been provided with a list of practices that were currently registering new patients.
- The CCG and NHS England monitored re-registering and any patient that had not re-registered 3 months after the closure would be sent a reminder letter.
- The CCG had invested GP Five Year Forward View money as well as local CCG investment into General Practice. The total investment to General Practice in South Tees, over and above the standard contract had been circa £2 million in 2016/17.
- The CCG had invested in "Care Navigation" with all 40 GP practices across South Tees. Care Navigation offered the patient choice to access the most appropriate service first. For example when a patient presented with symptoms that met the

access criteria for other services such as a counsellor, physiotherapist, pharmacist, public health services or opticians, the care navigator could confidently offer those choices and enable the patient to go straight to the service which best met their health and wellbeing needs (right place first time).

AGREED that the panel support the Joint OSC's recommendations and a letter be drafted to the Assistant Director for Mental Health, Learning Disabilities and Transformation at STCCG, highlighting the panel's concerns. A draft copy of the letter would be provided to the Chair / Vice Chair for signed approval prior to submission.

17/30 **OSB UPDATE**

The Chair provided a verbal update in relation to matters considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Board on 7 November 2017.